PLANNING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING
Tuesday, June 24, 2025
6:00 p.m. - Hybrid Meeting - Conference Room

Zoom Link
Planning Commission Agenda and Documents - June 24, 2025

Meeting ID: 952 4752 2778
Passcode: 365966

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Terry Carter - Chair Ryan Silvestri
Judy Pullinen Ted Stryhas
MEMBERS ABSENT:

Jean Strong

STAFF PRESENT:
Lisha Klaiber Charlotte Galley

OTHERS PRESENT:
Matt Townsend

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Terry Carter, Chair called the meeting at 6:01 p.m.

II. ROLL CALL BY RECORDING SECRETARY

1. All members present, except Jean Strong

III. OPENING STATEMENT BY CHAIR

1. Terry Carter said that she has no comments this evening.

IV. CONSIDERATIONS OF ANY CHANGES, ADDITIONS OR REMOVAL TO THE AGENDA



PLANNING COMMISSION JUNE 24, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

L.

2.

3.

Terry Carter suggested moving agenda item #VIII - Flood Regulations ahead of Item #VII
because Chis Yurek of MARC is present. She also noted that Agenda item VI- Rules of
Procedure if All Members Present should read Rules of Procedure
MOTION by Terry Carter and seconded by Ryan Silvestri to move Flood Regulations
ahead of Yearly Goals and to remove “If all Members Present” from Rules of Procedure.
Motion passed unanimously.

MOTION by Terry Carter and seconded by Judy Pullinen to accept changes to the agenda.

Motion passed unanimously.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES MAY 27, 2025

Terry Carter said she reviewed the minutes and noted that Item VII, 1a should read, “She said that
he said the fastest speed clocked was 48 mph.”

MOTION by Jean Strong and seconded by Terry Carter to accept the minutes from May
27,2025 as corrected. Motion passed unanimously.

VI. RULES OF PROCEDURE HFAEE-MEMBERSPRESENT

Terry Carter advised that VLCT holds the insurance and wants all of the towns to have the same
rules of procedure. We can sign the document.

MOTION by Terry Carter and seconded by Judy Pullinen to accept and sign the Rules of
Procedure. Motion passed unanimously.

VII. STANDALONE FLOOD REGULATIONS FOR THE TOWN OF LUDLOW

Terry Carter said that when she was getting ready for the flood regulations for the Town, she
researched the minutes for when they were working on the Village flood regulations. She noted
that the board had voted, at that time, to also approve the same regulations for the Town. The
regulations have been vetted by FEMA.

Chris Yurek said that the Village Flood regulations were adopted as stand-alone and asked if the
Town’s is identical.

Ryan Silvestri said he can’t think of anything that would apply to the Village and not to the
Town. He said we are also trying to consolidate to have one set of rules for the town and village
regardless of the merger.

Chris Yurek said that ACT121 has implications. If a town adopts the River Corridor, all of the
management is delegated to the State. But if a town adopts the River Corridor, they can
administer and get a bump. Currently you get reimbursed at 12.5%. If you adopt the river



PLANNING COMMISSION JUNE 24, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

corridor, you get reimbursed at a greater rate. But, he added, the river corridor is challenging to
administer. He said that the regulations are similar to the ones of most other cities and towns in
Vermont.

5. MOTION by Judy Pullinen and seconded by Ryan Silvestri to adopt the STANDALONE
FLOOD REGULATIONS FOR THE TOWN OF LUDLOW as presented. Motion passed

unanimously.

VIII. YEARLY GOALS - FROM THE LAST TOWN PLAN, THE VILLAGE SURVEY AND
CURRENT NEEDS

1. Terry Carter suggested the board review the goals from the town plan.

N

Judy Pullinen said the purpose is to identify what we want to do
Terry Carter said it usually takes 2 years to update the town plan. She said that we have a grant to

W

update the town zoning and can apply for a grant to update the town plan.

Ryan Silvestri said that there are some crossovers among the sections of the goals

Terry Carter said to make the village safe for pedestrians and more economically feasible
Ryan Silvestri suggested they create a short list of goals.

Judy Pullinen suggested going through the list and prioritizing them: high, medium and low.

NNk

Ryan Silvestri said that under Recreational Facilities, under Goals, #2, Provide accessibility to
recreational facilities for disabled residents and visitors. He noted that under Recreational

Facilities, under Recommendations #1 - Secure funding to provide access to all public
recreational facilities according to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). He said that
should be a driving factor to all changes. He said we are doing well on Recreation, but need to
get more people here.

9. Terry Carter said we do not have year round opportunities.

10. Ryan Silvestri referred to Local Economy - Recommendations, #1 - Target infrastructure

development, and allocation of capacity, to support economic development. He said that is a high
priority.

11. Charlotte Galley suggested promoting home businesses

12. Terry Carter said cottage industry. She said with a home baking business, health and safety have
to be considered, but not so much with knitting.

13. Ryan Silvestri said that butchering of livestock used to be designated to specific USDA locations.
He said now, there are USDA butchers that go to sites. We need to create a use permit, and not
always have to get building permits

14. Judy Pullinen said we need to develop a parking plan.

15. Ryan Silvestri said we need an “Executing Officer”

16. Judy Pullinen said there is a need for a planner. She said this list gives us an outline that shows
the need for a planner. She referred to Recreational Facilities - Recommendations, #3 - Continue

regular updates of the Capital Budget and Program for recreational facility needs. We need a
person to do that



PLAN

NING COMMISSION JUNE 24, 2025

Preliminary Minutes

17

18.

19.
20.

21.

22.
23.

24.
25.

26.

27.

28.

29.
30.
31.
32.
33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

. Ted Stryhas said if there is no money, we can’t do anything about village parking
Terry Carter said there are grants available for ADA upgrades. She referred to Local Economy -

Recommendations, #6 - Establish additional annual community events, such as Christmas white
light displays or Victorian Days in partnership with other economic development and community

improvement organizations, - she said the Chamber of Commerce does that

Judy Pullinen said all of Recreation is handled by the Recreation department.

Ryan Silvestri said we need to create a path, a vision for Ludlow in the next 5 - 8§ - 10 years. He
said the economy does that.

Judy Pullinen said we can skip Recreation, except for ADA. She referred to Local Economy -

Recommendations, #5 - Develop a comprehensive Village parking plan and explore municipal

financing options

Ryan Silvestri said this is an exercise that won’t yield results. We need to build ADA into
everything we do.

Judy Pullinen suggested that ADA compliance be a separate section.

Terry Carter referred to the Educational Facilities section.

Ryan Silvestri said we should look into ways to utilize the high school building. He said that the
fire station has been flooded, possibly using the high school area to park the fire trucks. He said

that the board should not go into the Energy section.

Terry Carter said we do not have an energy section in zoning

Ted Stryhas said this is a forever project to start to work on. What should we look into? This is
unbelievable and unachievable.

Ryan Silvestri said the priority should be for community growth and to extend municipal
services. We have a robust Lakes district, some properties with the original septics. It is
inevitable that there will be tear-downs on the lake. He went on to parking, suggesting we put 12
diagonal parking spaces by the library.

Judy Pullinen said we need to consider pedestrian safety, food trucks in the village take up
parking. What can be done for more parking and safety

Ryan Silvestri said that Pleasant Street has 2 side parking and suggested making it one side.
Judy Pullinen suggested parking meters.

Ryan Silvestri said that any revenue stream will need a person to monitor it, i.e. giving out
parking tickets.

Judy Pullinen suggested writing a grant for a parking study. What do we have, what do we need
and how do we get there?

Ryan Silvestri said that the fire chief may like one-side parking on Pleasant Street - it would
make it easier to get the fire trucks through. We need to find out what we need to do to change
the parking by the library. He suggested that Logan Nicoll may have some suggestions.

Judy Pullinen said we need a professional person to tell us how we can get more parking - we
need to have a study and try to get a grant for that

Ryan Silvestri said we need better signage for the Municipal parking area by Brewfest. He said
the sign we do have is 22 feet up on a telephone pole.

Judy Pullinen said we need more sidewalks



PLANNING COMMISSION JUNE 24, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

38.
39.
40.
41.

42.
43.
44,

45.

46.
47.
48.

49.
50.
S1.
52.
53.
54.
55.

56.
57.
58.

Terry Carter said we should work on avenues for parking

Ryan Silvestri said we need to have an engineered plan done for parking

Terry Carter said they should ask Ron Tarbell to come to a meeting to discuss this.

Ted Stryhas suggested taking the village map and pointing out specific areas where we may be
able to put parking.

Judy Pullinen said we need to consider pedestrian safety.

Terry Carter said they need to come up goals - and how do we get there

Ryan Silvestri said we need to have money in the annual budget for engineering and execution of
plans.

Judy Pullinen said we should have high priority goals and by November come up with a list of
projects to put into the budget.

Ryan Silvestri said we all need to review this list and come up with our own ideas and our top 5.
Judy Pullinen suggested just discussing goals at the July meeting

Ryan Silvestri said that we need to ask the Select Board and Trustees how much money they are
willing to put in the budget. He asked what we can get done in 6 months. He would like to see
something (projects) shovel in the ground by July 2026.

Ted Stryhas said we need to know what the Select Board and Trustees want.

Terry Carter said that with the Municipal Plan, we should start with the public

Ted Stryhas agreed saying that we need to know what the people want

Judy Pullinen said she would be willing to facilitate an affinity group exercise at a meeting
Terry Carter asked board members to come back to next month’s meeting with 5 goals.

Ryan Silvestri asked about capital

Judy Pullinen said we need to develop a list of recommendations to present to the Select Board by
November

Terry Carter said we also need to be working on Town Zoning.

Judy Pullinen said we need to boil this down to 3 to 5 goals by November

Terry Carter said we need to pursue affordable goals.

X. NEXT MONTH’S AGENDA - TOWN ZONING UPDATES

Terry Carter said that Jason Rasmussen will be here to work on Town Zoning Regulations at our
next meeting.

Terry Carter asked board members to review the town plan lists and bring 5 goals to the next
meeting

Ted Stryhas said that he will not be at the July meeting, but that he will send a list of goals to
board members

XI. OTHER BUSINESS



PLANNING COMMISSION JUNE 24, 2025
Preliminary Minutes

1. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS (5 MINUTES)
a. There were no questions or comments

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS (5 MINUTES)
a. Matt Townsend suggested that when coming up with their 5 goals, they may want to

remember SMART goals
i.  Specific
ii.  Measurable

1. Achievable
1v. Relevant
V. Time-bound

XII. ADJOURN
1. MOTION by Judy Pullinen and seconded by Ryan Silvestri to adjourn. Motion passed

unanimously.
2. Meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted

Lisha Klaiber
Terry Carter., Chairman Jean Strong
Judy Pullinen Ted Stryhas

Ryan Silvestri



